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About us

Our Company is primarily engaged in the
business of manufacturing and designing the
wide range of wholesale Gold Jewelleries
which includes plain gold, studded and
named jewelleries available in 22karat and
18Karat. Our Company manufacturers the
finished gold jewelleries from the raw gold 1.
2. bullions and reguired consumables and
sell it to dealers, showrooms, corporates
and small jewellery shops in the wholesale
guantities. We provide an extensive range of
jewellery designs of plain gold, rose gold, the
jewelleries studded with Cubic Zircon and /
or coloured stones and named jewelleries
customized and designed in detail, keeping
in mind the customer's unique preferences
and reguirements. Our Company manufac-
tures jewelleries for three categories of
Individuals men, women and children.

We cater to a large number of local
dealers, showrooms and small-scale jewel-
lery shops who buy our products in bulk
guantities. We cater to a variety of customers
across mid-market and value market seg-
ments and our products are designed by our
in-house team of designers who are CAD
designers and also certain freelance design-
ers, allowing us to manage a large and
diverse portfolio of designs. Our product
range includes Anklet, Bangle, Bracelet,
Earrings, Necklace, Nose Pin, Pendant, Ring
and customized named jewelleries (like
Mame Bracelet, Name Pendant, Name Ring)
based om the dealer's orders and end
customers preferences and demands.
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To be the leading gold jewellery
manufacturer globally, known for
our exquisite craftsmanship,
exceptional quality and timeless
designs that enhance the beauty
and elegance of every individual.

Our
Mission

Qur mission is to create and deliver
exceptional gold jewellery pieces that
surpass our customer's expectations,
reflecting their unique style and per-
sonality. We strive to achieve this by
combining traditional craftsmanship
with innovative techniques, using the
finest materials and ethical practices.
We are committed to providing out-
standing customer service,building
long lasting relationships and con-
tinuously evolving to meet the ever
changing demands of the jewellery
industry.
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 7th Annual General Meeting of AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS
LIMITED of members of the Company will be held on 27t" day of September 2025, Saturday
at 10.30 A.M, through VC/OAVM, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1) Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31-03-2025 and the Profit
and Loss Account for the year ended on that date together with the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2) Retirement by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs FATHIMA JASNA KOTTEKKATTU (DIN: 10691112 )
who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers herself
for reappointment.

Special Business
3) Appointment of Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates, LLP as Secretarial auditor

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following
Resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with
circulars issued thereunder to the extent applicable, Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates,
LLP Calicut, be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company to
conduct Secretarial audit for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from 1t April, 2025 to 31st
March, 2030 on a remuneration to be fixed by the Managing Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
do all necessary acts, deeds and things, which may be usual, expedient or proper to give

”n n

effect to the above resolution”.
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4) Approval of material related party transactions

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors
to enter into transaction/s of purchase/sale of goods / services, lease, transfer, assign or
otherwise exchange and allotment of shares for consideration other than cash for the
period of 2025-26 with effect from 01/04/2025, for an annual value not exceeding Rs.
100 crores, to be discharged in a manner and on such terms and conditions as may be
mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors.

Resolved further that such transactions shall be in the normal course of business and on
arm’s length basis considering the best interest of the Company

Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to negotiate and finalise other terms and conditions and to do all such acts, deeds and
things including delegation of powers as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

5) Increase of borrowing limits

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules
thereunder, and the Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the members
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for borrowing, from
time to time, any sum or sums of monies which together with the monies already
borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from
the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of
the paid up capital of the Company and its free reserves, provided that the total amount
so borrowed by the Board shall not at any time exceed Rs. 60 cr or the aggregate of the
paid up capital and free reserves of the Company, whichever is higher.

Resolved further that the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds
and things, to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required
to give effect to this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED

ASHRAF PERINKADAKKAD
Vengara
28-08-2025 MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 08094239



Notes:

Details of the directors seeking re-appointment as required under Regulation 36 (3) of

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 secretarial standard-2:

Particulars Mrs FATHIMA JASNA KOTTEKKATTU
DIN 10691112

Date of Birth 02/02/1996

Date of Appointment 05/08/2024

Type of Appointment Executive Director retiring by rotation.
Number of shares held in the Company 2,15,400

Membership/Chairmanship of Committees | NIL
of other Companies

Experience She has been appointed as an Executive
Director of our Company with effect
from

August 05, 2024 and she oversees the
strategic leadership and management
decisions and oversees the development
and implementation of organizational
policies and procedures

Directorships held in other Companies: NIL




Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec 102 of the Companies Act 2013

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (the
“SEBI ICDR Regulations”) the following Statement sets out all material facts relating to
Ordinary/Special business mentioned under Item Nos. 3 to 5 of the accompanying Notice dated
28th August 2025.

Item No: 3

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, and in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24A and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI Listing Regulations, every listed entity is required to
undertake Secretarial Audit by a Peer Reviewed Secretarial Auditors who shall be appointed by
the shareholders of the Company, on the recommendation of the Board of Directors, for a term
of 5(five) consecutive years from 1st April, 2025 to 31st March,2030.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 28t June, 2025, subject to the approval of
shareholders of the Company, approved the appointment of Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates
LLP, Peer Reviewed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, as Secretarial Auditors of
the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from 1st April,
2025 to 31st March, 2030.

Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates LLP had consented to their appointment as the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed that their appointment is in the accordance with
section 204 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI Listing
Regulations and that they fulfil the criteria as specified in clause (a) of Regulation 24A(1A) SEBI
Listing Regulations including the test of independence and have further confirmed that they have
not incurred any of the disqualifications as specified by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India. Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates LLP is a firm led by a team of 7 partners who are
experienced and qualified company secretaries. The proposed remuneration approved is Rs
1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) (excluding taxes, as applicable) in addition to reimbursement
of out of pocket expenses and travelling expenses for carrying out Secretarial Audit. The Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee shall approve revisions to the remuneration of the
Secretarial Auditors, for the balance part of the tenure based on review and any additional efforts
on account of changes in regulations, restructuring or other considerations. Besides the
secretarial audit services, the Company may also obtain certifications which are to be
mandatorily received from the Secretarial Auditors under various statutory regulations from time
to time, for which the auditors will be remunerated separately on mutually agreed terms.
Accordingly, consent of the shareholders is sought for approval of the aforesaid appointment of
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution for approval by the shareholders.

None of the Directors or any Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is interested in the
resolution.



Iltem No: 4

Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with rules 15 and 16 of Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules 2014 prescribe certain procedure for approval of material related
party transactions by members.

The proviso to section 188 also states that nothing in section 188(1) will apply to any transaction
entered into by the company in its ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis.

All the proposed transactions put up for approval are in ordinary course of business and at arm’s
length.

All the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions will be approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee and also on complying with all the statutory
requirements in this regard.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution for approval by the shareholders.

All directors and KMP are interested in the resolution except Independent Directors

Item No: 5

As on 31/03/2025, the outstanding borrowings of the Company amounted to Rs. 2,61,60,819.06.
Considering the funding requirements of the Company for both short term as well as long term
and for general corporate purposes, the Company may require to borrow from time to time by
way of loans and/or issue of bonds, debentures or other securities. The present paid up capital,
reserves and securities premium of the Company amounts to Rs 14,73,87,424.72. Any
borrowings in excess of the above amount requires your approval and the resolution proposed
above is with this end in view.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the Special Resolution for approval of the
Shareholders

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in any way,
concerned or interested in the resolution, except to the extent of their equity holding in the
Company.

ASHRAF PERINKADAKKAD
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 08094239



Notes:

Pursuant to Companies Act 2013 and in continuation to Ministry’s General Circular
General Circular No 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024 it has been decided to allow Companies
whose AGM are due in financial year 2024 and 2025 through VIDEO CONFERENCE (VC) or
OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS on or before 30th September 2025 in accordance with Para
3 and Para 4 of Circular No: 20/2022 dated 05.05.2022 the Company is providing facility
of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM.
For this purpose, the Company has taken the services of RTA Bigshare Services Private
Limited for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-
voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by Bigshare Services Private
Limited.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted
for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy
to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives
of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body
corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
https://ajciewel.com// The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated
on the website of Bigshare Services Private Limited (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) ie.
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/landing.

Shareholders who have queries may send their queries in advance 5 days prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account number, email id, mobile number at
investors@ajcjewel.com . These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by
email.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during
the AGM.
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8.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM
and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM
facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility
of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the
meeting.

The “Cut-off Date” for determining eligibility of the Members for the purpose of remote
e-voting, for participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the
AGM is 20t Sept 2025.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

The voting period begins on 24-09-2025 09:00 AM and ends on 26-09-2025 05:00 PM.
During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 20-09-2025 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare Services Private
Limited for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled
to vote at the meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020,
under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide
remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions.
However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting
facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders,
by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in
e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,
2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised

to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access

e-Voting facility.
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1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings

for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL

1)

2)

3)

4)

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to
Easi/Easiest is https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login or visit
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System

Myeasi Tab and then use your existing Myeasi username & password.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of BIGSHARE the e-Voting service provider
and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. BIGSHARE, so that the user
can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a link
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress, and also
able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. Click on
BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting your vote
during the remote e-voting period.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting
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2)

3)

4)

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be redirected to i-
Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

For OTP based login you can

click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp.
You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No.,
Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered
email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein
you can see e-Voting page with all e-Voting Service Providers. Click on
BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-vote (E-voting website) for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL
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Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at

toll free No. 1800 22 55 33.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in
login can contact NSDL helpdesk by

sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com
or call at 022- 48867000.

2. Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other than individual shareholders holding

shares in Demat mode & physical mode is given below:

= You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser:

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com

= (Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting
Platform.

= Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which
is shared separately on you register email id.

o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit
Beneficiary ID as user id.

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character
DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID as user id.

o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio
Number registered with the Company as user id.

Note If you have not received any user id or password please email from your registered
email id or contact i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in
helpdesk section).

= Clickon | AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.

NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-
Voting system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com and/or voted on an earlier event of
any company then they can use their existing user id and password to login.

= |f you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and
then Click on ‘Forgot your password?

= Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on | AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA)
option and click on ‘Reset’.

(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her
registered e-mail address).
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Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal:

= After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.

= Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal.

= Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option.

= (Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner of
the page.

= Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or
“ABSTAIN” and click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click
“OK” to confirm, else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed
to modify your vote.

= Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen
and also you will receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting
period, members can login any number of times till they have voted on the
resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently.

=  Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE”
option on investor portal.

3. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website:

"= You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser:
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com

= Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigshare i-
Vote e-Voting Platform.

= Enter all required details and submit.
= After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password
will be sent via email on your registered email id”.

NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then

they can use their existing user id and password to login.

= |f you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab
and further Click on ‘Forgot your password?

» Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on | AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA)
option and click on ‘RESET.

(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her

registered e-mail address).

Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal:

= After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.
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Investor Mapping:

=  First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on
custodian portal.
o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type power
of attorney (POA).
o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) or
board resolution for respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”.

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the
“InvestorID.pdf” (Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.)
o Yourinvestor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.

Investor vote File Upload:
e To cast your vote select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on
custodian portal.

e Select the Event under dropdown option.

» Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the
same file under upload document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation
message will be displayed on the screen and also you can check the file status on
display (Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently).

= Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE”
option on custodian portal.

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting:

Login type Helpdesk details

Shareholders other than individual In case shareholders/ investor have any queries
shareholders holding shares in Demat mode regarding E-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
& Physical mode. Questions (‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting module available

at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download

section or you can email us to
ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22,
022-62638338

4. Procedure for joining the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM:

For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & physical
mode is given below:
= The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com under Investor login by using the e-voting credentials

(i.e., User ID and Password).

= After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.
= Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal.

= Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM under the dropdown option.

= For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of “VIDEO
CONFERENCE LINK” option.
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Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM are as under:-

The Members can join the AGM/EGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the
scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on the
day of the AGM/EGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM/EGM through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system in the AGM/EGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting:

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may
refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) available at
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download section or you can email us to
ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22, 022-62638338
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BOARDS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 7t Boards’ Report together with audited
Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report of your company for the financial year

ended 31t March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(In Rs)

Figures for the

Figures for the

Particulars Current Reporting | Previous Reporting

Period Period
Revenue from Operations 2,20,46,34,647.78 | 2,45,88,99,492.48
Other Income 67,42,877.08 97,34,128.28
Total Income (I+11) 2,21,13,77,524.86 | 2,46,86,33,620.76

Expenses:

Cost of Materials Consumed

2,31,51,39,874.68

2,34,81,41,478.01

Purchase of Stock in Trade

NIL

NIL

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade

-21,59,20,000.00

Employee Benefits Expense

3,53,10,410.00

4,49,48,522.00

Finance Costs

2,04,65,288.83

1,59,17,895.45

Other Expenses

1,38,12,046.39

1,35,22,498.66

Total Operating Expenses 2,16,88,07,619.90 | 2,42,25,30,394.12
Cash profit 4,25,69,904.96 4,61,03,226.64
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 34,24,839.34 31,48,333.34

Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary
Iltems and Tax (llI-1V)

3,91,45,065.62

4,29,54,893.30

Exceptional Items NIL
Profit Before Extraordinary Items and Tax (V-VI) NIL 4,29,54,893.30
Extraordinary Items NIL

Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII)

3,91,45,065.62

4,29,54,893.30

Tax Expense

(1) Current Tax

1,03,16,290.00

1,14,19,225.00

(2) Deferred Tax

1,70,947.00

3,58,807.00

(3) Short/excess of Income tax of previous years

23,430.00

NIL

Profit/(Loss) for the Period from continuing
operations (IX-X)

2,86,34,398.62

3,11,76,861.30

Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations NIL NIL
Tax Expense of discontinuing operations NIL NIL
Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations

after tax (X11-XI11) NIL NIL

Profit/Loss for the period (XI+XIV)

2,86,34,398.62

3,11,76,861.30
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. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Your Company is engaged in the manufacturing of gold and diamond jewellery under the
brand name ‘AJC’. The company recorded a revenue of Rs 220,46,34,647.78 and Net profit of
Rs 2,86,34,398.62 during the year under review.

The Company during the year under initiated the IPO process in SME Platform of BSE starting
with the conversion of the company from Private to Public and consequently changing the
name to “AJC Jewel Manufacturer Limited”. Changes were also made in the Director board to
cope with the statutory obligations to be met by an SME Listed Company.

Dematerialisation of shares

The entire shares of the Company were converted to DEMAT during the year under review.
The ISIN of the Company is INEOXRR01010.

. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ended 31%t
March, 2025

. STATE OF AFFAIRS

o The turnover of the company for the current year is Rs. 220.46 cr as against the turnover
of Rs. 245.89 cr of the previous year, thus registering a dip by 10.34%.

o The net profit for the current year is Rs. 286.34 Lakhs as against the net profit of Rs.
311.77 Lakhs of the previous year, resulting in a dip by 8.16%.

. WEB LINK
The Annual return of the Company is uploaded in the website of the company and the link for
the same is https://ajciewel.com/files/119

. DIVIDEND
No dividend is recommended for the current financial year as your directors propose to
plough back the profit for continued investment in the business.

. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND
There are no unclaimed dividend to be transferred to investor education and protection fund.

. MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS
The Company during the year under review was converted to Public Limited Company with
effect from 24/09/2024. The Company was listed in the SME Platform of BSE on July 15t 2025.

. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

There is nothing to be reported with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption
and foreign exchange as required to be disclosed under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year: 3371.77 Lakhs
Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows: 0.57 Lakhs

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company being in gold business have various risks and the Company has formulated an
internal risk management policy with adequate checks and audits. The risks thus identified
are duly informed to the Board of Directors for their timely interference.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not made any investment, nor has given any guarantee or securities during
the year under review. Therefore, it is not required to comply with provisions of Section 186
of Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company has entered into contracts transactions with related parties which were on
Arm’s length and ordinary course of business. However these transactions does not include
any materially significant transaction with the Promoter/Directors and others as defined in
Sec 2(76) of the Companies Act 2013, which may have conflict of interest with the Company
at large.

Disclosure of related party in AOC 2 is enclosed herewith in Annexure A. The policy on
Related Party Transactions is available in the website of the Company at
https://ajcjewel.com/folders/7

DETAILS OF COMPANY’S CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility
initiatives as the said provisions are not applicable.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS

STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s Kumar & Biju Associates Chartered Accountants (FRN:006113S), CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS, Calicut were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
period of 5 years from 2024-25 to 2028-29 at the 6t Annual General Meeting held on 09-09-
2024 and also to hold office from the conclusion of the 6t AGM till the conclusion of the 11t
AGM to be held in the year 2029.

The observations of the Statutory Auditors, when read together with the relevant notes to
the accounts and accounting policies are self-explanatory and do not require any further
comment. The statutory Auditor’s Report does not carry any adverse remarks or comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board has appointed the firm Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates LLP as the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company for the year under review at the Board meeting held on 28-06-
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16.

17.

2025. A proposal for their re-appointment for a period of 5 years ending 31.03.2030 is placed
before the shareholders at the forthcoming 7" AGM to be held on 27-09-2025. The
secretarial Report is annexed as Annexure-D to the Directors’ Report.

The observations of the Secretarial Auditor, when read together with the relevant notes to
the accounts and accounting policies are self-explanatory and do not require any further
comment. The statutory Auditor’s Report does not carry any adverse remarks or comments.

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR
No fraud u/s 143 (12) is reported by the auditors.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The Company has adopted a very broad policy to include the required expertise in Board
considering the Public Offer. The appointments were duly made after considering the merits
of each director to make sure that their contributions will be valuable in the journey ahead.
Proper consideration has been given for expertise, education, work, gender etc for the
appointment of all the directors made by the Company during the year under review.

MEETINGS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors of the Company duly meet 19
(Nineteen) times i.e. on 10-04-2024, 17-06-2024, 22-07-2024, 05-08-2024, 31-08-2024, 24-
09-2024, 29-09-2024 (2), 30-09-2024(2), 18-10-2024, 14-11-2024, 06-12-2024, 15-12-
2024, 02-01-2025, 03-01-2025, 08-01-2025, 14-02-2025 and 11-03-2025. The intervening
gap between the two meetings was within the period as prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Further, the status of attendance of Board Meeting by each of Director is as follow:

Sno Date Ashraf P Kunhimok i P jhimoid Fathima Jasna Muhamed Ali C Afnas Anoop Ganesh Ramani Total date wise

1 10-04-2024 Attended Attended Attended
2 17-06-2024 Attended Attended Attended
3 22-07-2024 Attended Attended Attended
4 05-08-2024 Attended - - Attended Attended
5 31-08-2024 Attended - - Attended Attended
6 24-09-2024 | Attended - - Attended Attended
7 29-09-2024 | Attended - - Attended Attended
8 29-09-2024 | Attended - - Attended Attended
9 30-09-2024 | Attended - - Attended Attended Attended

10 30-09-2024 Attended - - Attended Attended

11 18-10-2024 Attended - - Attended Attended

12 14-11-2024 Attended - - Attended Attended

13 06-12-2024 Attended - - Attended Attended

14 15-12-2024 Attended - - Attended Attended - - Attended

21




15

02-01-2025 Attended - - Attended Attended

16

03-01-2025 Attended - - Attended Attended

17

08-01-2025 Attended - - Attended Attended - Attended

18

14-02-2025 Attended - - Attended Attended

19

11-03-2025 Attended - - Attended Attended

Total
director wise 19 3 3 15 15 1 1 1

18. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, confirm that:
a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been

19.

20.

21.

22.

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the company for that period;

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

Clause (e) of section 134(5) is not applicable as the Company is not a listed Company

e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion & Analysis Report for
the year under review forms the part of this report and is marked as Annexure — B to this
report.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

DEPOSITS

The Board states that no disclosure or reporting was required in respect of the details
relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act as there were no deposits during the
financial year. The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review the following changes have taken the in the Board of
Directors:
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Name of the Director Appointment/Change in Date of
designation/Cessation Appointment/Change in
designation/Cessation
Mr Mohamedali Appointed as Whole Time | 05-08-2024 (EGM)
Cheruparambil Director
Mrs Fathima Jasna Appointed as Executive | 05-08-2024 (EGM)
Kottekattu Director
Mr Ashraf P Appointed as Chairman and | 05-08-2024 (Board
Managing Director Meeting)
Mr Kunhimohammed P Cessation 05-08-2024 (Board
Meeting)
Mr Kunhimoideen Cessation 05-08-2024 (Board
Meeting)
Mr Anoop Vasudevan Appointed as Non- | 09-09-2024 (AGM)
Executive Independent
Director
Mr Afnas Appointed as Non- | 09-09-2024 (AGM)
Executive Independent
Director
Mr Ganesh Ramani Appointed as Non- | 29-09-2024 (EGM)
Executive Independent
Director
MrThajudheen Appointed as Non- | 27-03-2025 (EGM)
Valakkundil Executive Independent
Director

The Company was converted into Public Company post the 6" Annual General Meeting.
Hence the rotation of directors was not considered at the 6" AGM held during the year
under review.

Pursuant to Sec 152 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Article 93 of the Article of
Association of the Company Mrs FATHIMA JASNA KOTTEKKATTU (DIN: 10691112) Director
of the Company is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible has offered herself for
reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends her
reappointment.

EMPLOYEE DETAILS

The total number of employees as on 31.03.2025 is 69.
The composition of the total number employees is as mentioned below:

Number of male employees 57
Number of female employees 12
Number of transgender employees 0

Total number of employees 69
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961

POSH Disclosure

As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and rules made there under, your Company has
adopted a Sexual Harassment Policy for women to ensure healthy working environment
without fear of prejudice, gender bias and sexual harassment.

The company has also formed a ICC under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and rules made there under and the
committee met twice during the year under report.

Number of complaints received during the year: NIL

No. of complaints disposed off in the year; Nil

Cases pending for more than 90 days; Nil

No. of workshops and awareness programmes conduced in the year; Nil
Nature of action by employer or District Officer, if any Nil

Maternity Benefit Act Disclosure

There were no female employees covered under the Maternity Benefit Act 1961 for the year
under review. Hence the Company does not require to disclose the maternity benefits
provided under the Act.

AMOUNT WHICH IT PROPOSES TO CARRY TO RESERVES

The after-tax profit earned by the Company for the financial year was Rs. 2,86,34,398.62/-
and the same was transferred to surplus account under reserves and surplus account.

COST RECORD
The provision of Cost audit as per section 148 is not applicable for the Company.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors of the Company
under section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and there has been
no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as Independent Directors.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation were observed

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES

The details of the committees, the constituion and the meeting details are as mentioned
below:
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Audit Committee

Name of the Nature of Designation Meeting and attendance
Directors Directorship in 30-09-2024 20-01-2025
Committee
Mr. Afnas Non- Chairman Attended Attended
Executive
Independent
Director
Mr. Ganesh Non- Member Attended Attended
Ramani Executive
Independent
Director
Mr. Ashraf P Chairman & Member Attended Attended
Managing
Director
Mrs Reshmi N K Company Secretary Attended Attended
Secretary
Stakeholder Relationship Committee
Name of the Nature of Designation Meeting and attendance
Directors Directorship in 14-02-2025
Committee
Non-Executive Chairman Not Attended
Mr. Afnas Independent
Director
Non-Executive Member Not Attended
Mr. Anoop V Independent
Director
Mr. Mohamedali Whole Time Member Attended
Cheruparambil Director
Mrs Reshmi N K Company Secretary Attended
Secretary
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Name of the Nature of Designation Meeting and
Directors Directorship in attendance
Committee 14-02-2025
Non-Executive Chairman Attended
Mr. Anoop V Independent
Director
Non-Executive Member Not Attended
Mr. Afnas Independent
Director
Non-Executive Member Not Attended
Mr. Ganesh
. Independent
Ramani .
Director
Mrs Reshmi N K Company Secretary Attended
Secretary

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM

The company has developed a Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy so as to enable
the Directors and Employees to report their concerns and any unethical behavior or
suspected fraud or violation of company’s code of conduct. The board aims at providing a
safer work environment for all the employees. The Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism
Policy can be accessed in the website of the company under the link
https://ajcjewel.com/folders/3

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS

No significant and material order has been passed by the Regulators, Courts, Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

THE DETAILS OF DEPOSITS WHICH ARE NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF
CHAPTER V OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits which are not in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act 2013 during the year under review.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards and that systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3)(e)

The board has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy which clearly prescribes the
criteria for the appointment, re-appointment, continuance etc of the Directors of the
Company. It also makes sure that the Company adopts a proper combination of expertise,
gender, skills, experience etc. The policy is placed in the web site of the Company and the
link is https://ajcjewel.com/files/5.
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35. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

The details of Managerial Remuneration, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of the
Company as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of
the Companies 47(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
has been set out as Annexure —‘C’ to this Report, attached hereto.
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FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ASHRAF PERINKADAKKAD FATHIMA JASNA KOTTEKKATTU
DIN: 08094239 DIN: 10691112
Managing Director Director

Date: 28/08/2025
Place: Vengara
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ANNEXURE - A
FORM AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended
March 31, 2025, which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:
The company entered into related party transactions in the normal course of business, at
prevailing market rate, in the best interest of company and with the approval of appropriate

authorities.

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course

of business:
Name Relation Nature .Of Amount (X)
Transaction
Chairman and Managing

Ashraf Perinkadakkad Director Salary 43,77,600.00
Fathima jasna K.K Executive Director Salary 6,00,000.00
Mohamedali Cheruparambil Whole Time Director Salary 6,48,000.00
Mohamedali Cheruparambil Whole Time Director Purchase 5,44,348.00

Entity in Which Director is
Vismaya Furniture substantially Interested Payment 52,700.00

Entity in Which Director is
Vismaya Gold substantially Interested Receipt 2,75,40,361.00

Entity in Which Director is
Vismaya Gold substantially Interested Purchase 1,03,60,848.54

Entity in Which Director is
Vismaya Gold substantially Interested Sales 2,96,94,200.00

Entity in Which Director is
AJC Jewellery Trading LLC substantially Interested Sales 33,97,28,159.63
Asya Related to Director Salary 6,00,000.00

Related to Director

Kunhimohmed Perinkadakat (Retired as director) Salary 18,00,000.00
Afsal Rahman P Related to Director Purchase 94,445.00
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Afsal Rahman P Related to Director Sales 91,694.17
Mahesh KV CFO Purchase 2,39,808.00
Mahesh KV CFO Sales 13,338.83
Mahesh KV CFO Salary 6,48,000.00

Reshmi Nilambur Kovilakam Company Secretary Salary 4,20,000.00

By Order of the Board of Directors
AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED

ASHRAF PERINKADAKKAD
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 08094239
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry structure and development

Gold and other precious metals have played a pivotal role in human civilization for centuries.
Historically, gold has served not only as ornamentation but also as a highly valued investment
option. Its allure has grown in tandem with the advancement of global economies, making it
a vital asset on the international stage.

Gold is recognized as an economic safeguard —acting as a hedge against inflation and a secure
refuge during financial instability. Despite fluctuating market rates, the gold jewelry industry
has steadily prospered. In India, gold is deeply embedded in cultural traditions, particularly
weddings, where it symbolizes wealth and social prestige. Indian consumers rank third
globally in retail gold consumption.

The company specializes in the manufacturing of gold and precious metal jewelry, producing
a diverse range of designs. Its operations involve supplying these products to various jewelers

across the state of Kerala.

Opportunities/Threats

The company operates on continuous improvement model and analyzes the growing demand
for gold jewelry, with particular attention to lightweight designs. It also remains focused on
tracking the latest trends and fashion changes within the industry, adjusting its production
accordingly to meet evolving consumer preferences. However, the rising cost of gold and
associated charges poses a significant risk to the industry.

In response, the company is exploring cost-efficient manufacturing methods to maintain
profitability without compromising quality. It is also expanding its market presence through
both offline and digital platforms to reach a broader customer base. Additionally, the
company emphasizes quality assurance and customer satisfaction, ensuring that its products
meet high standards and build long-term trust with clients.

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The company has maintained adequate internal control systems that are commensurate with
the size and scale of its operations, covering key areas such as the purchase of stock, raw
materials (including components), plant and machinery, other assets, and the sale of goods.
These controls are designed to ensure that all company assets are properly safeguarded
against loss and that all transactions are duly authorized, accurately recorded, and
appropriately reported. The internal control framework is further strengthened by a well-
structured internal audit system.

Financial Performance-Segment wise

As the company is engaged in the manufacture of gold and precious metal jewelry, and the
manufacturing operations are carried out as a single unified process, segment-wise analysis
of production is not considered significant. Additionally, the company maintains a
streamlined operational structure to ensure efficiency across all stages of production. It also
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continuously invests in advanced technology and skilled craftsmanship to enhance product
guality and meet evolving customer expectations.

Industrial relation and human resource management

Your management firmly believes that the success of any organization stems from strong and
capable human resources. Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets, playing
a vital role in driving the company’s growth and long-term success. To foster this, the
company places emphasis on creating a positive work environment that encourages skill
development and employee engagement. Regular training programs and performance
evaluations are conducted to ensure continuous professional growth. As of now, the total
number of employees directly employed by the company stands at 69.

Risks and Concerns

Risks are unavoidable in any business and in the Gold Industry the major risk is the fluctuation
of gold prices apart from competition. The management is very keen in identifying the risks
and ensuring proper initiatives to deal with the various associated with the industry.

Management strongly believes that risks cannot be avoided however with a proper strategic

planning such risks arising can be dealt with ease so as to ensure that the business does not
get affected.

Company’s Financial Performance

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Particulars

2024-25 (in Rs)

2023-24 (in Rs)

Revenue from operations

220,46,34,647.78

245,88,99,492.48

Other Income

67,42,877.08

97,34,128.28

Total Income

2,21,13,77,524.86

246,86,33,620.76

Profit before Tax

3,91,45,065.62

4,29,54,893.30

Provision for tax

1,05,10,667.00

1,17,78,032.00

Profit after tax

2,86,34,398.62

3,11,76,861.30

Cautionary Statement

Statement given in this section describing the company's objectives, projection, estimates, and
expectations may be “forward looking statements" based on the present environment, rules
and regulations. The actual result could differ materially from those expressed or implied. The
important factors that could make a difference among others are economic situation affecting
demand and supply, price fluctuation both in domestic and international markets in which the
company operates, changes in Govt. regulations, consumer taste, tax laws and other statues
and other incidental factors. The company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify
or revise any of the forward-looking statements on the basis of any subsequent developments

or events
By Order of the Board of Directors

AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED

ASHRAF PERINKADAKKAD
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 08094239



DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND

Annexure C — Particulars of employees

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

A. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Manager during the financial year 2024-25 and the ratio of the
remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the

Company for the financial year 2024-25 are as under:

Sl.no | Name of Director/ Remuneration of | % Increase in Ratio of
KMP and the Director/KMP | remuneration remuneration
Designation for the FY 2024-25 | in of each
(Rs. in Lakhs) the FY 2024-25 | Director/KMP to
median
remuneration
of employees#
1. Ashraf 67 59.52 23.76
Perinkadakkad(Managing
Director)
2 Fathima Jasna KK 15 NIL 5.32
(Executive Director)
3 Mohamedali C (Whole 7.38 NIL 2.62
Time Director)
4 Mahesh K V (Chief 7.38 NIL 2.62
Financial Officer)
5 Reshmi N K (Company 4.20 NIL 1.49
Secretary)

#Median remuneration taken as 1
1. The remuneration of median employee of the Company during financial year 2024-25

2.

was Rs 2.82 Lakhs

There were 69 permanent employees on the payroll of the Company as on 315t March
2025 including Directors and KMP.
Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employees other than

the

managerial personnel in the financial year 2024-25 was 10%.
It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year ended 315t March,
2025 is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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B. STATEMENT PURSUANT TO RULE 5(2) & 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

During the year under review, no employee of the Company was in receipt of
remuneration requiring disclosure under Rule 5(2) of Chapter Xlll, the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

By Order of the Board of Directors

AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED

ASHRAF PERINKADAKKAD
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 08094239
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Thoadeer Cormplen

GOPIMOHAN SATHEESAN & ASSOCIATES LLP

LLPIN: AAN-0892
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES

Karunalayam, Opp. Malabar Christian College, Wayanad Road, Kozhikode - 673 001

Phone: 0495-2762338, 2762239 & 3590895, Mob: 9847138005, 9188331805, E-mail: kpsatheesanfcs@gmail.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED

38/227-Z, INKEL GREENS EDU CITY KARATHODE-KONAMPARA ROAD, PANAKKAD VILLAGE
PATTARKADAVU ERNAD, KERALA - 676519

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and adherence to good corporate practices by AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/ statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by AJCJEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED for the financial year ended on
31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

1. The CompaniesAct,2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

2. Provisions of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to the extent the same is applicable
to the Company.
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3. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of compliance by the Indian company receiving amount of
consideration for issue of shares under company’s stock option scheme.

We further state that the Company for the year under review got converted to a
Public Company from Private Company on 24/09/2025 subsequently the Company
was listed on the SME Platform of BSE on 01/07/2025.

We further report that, based on the representation made by the Company and
its Officers in respect of systems and mechanism formed/ followed by the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in
pursuance thereof, the following laws, regulations, directions, orders are
applicable to the Company and to the best of our knowledge the company has
complied with the applicable provisions thereof:

Factories Act 1948.
Industrial Dispute Act 1947.
Child Labor (Prohibition and Regulation) Act 1986.

Sexual Harassment of Women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act 2013.

Payment of Wages Act, 1936, and rules made there under,

Ao~

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and rules made there under,

Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, and rules made there under,

® N o o

The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and
rules made there under,

9. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, and rules made there under,
10. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, and rules made there under,

11. The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, Read with Water
(Prevention & Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975,

12. The Foreign Trade (Development & Regulation) Act, 1992
13. Policies and provisions of GJEPC.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a reasonable system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting. Majority decision is carried through and proper
system is in place which facilitates/ ensure to capture and record, the dissenting
member’s views, if any, as part of the Minutes. Based on the representation made
by the Company and its Officers explaining us in respect of internal systems and
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mechanism established by the Company which ensures compliances of other Acts,
Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company, We report that there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with its size and
operations to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there are no specific events /
actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines etc. referred to above.

Calicut
Date: 25-08-2025
UDIN: F004173G001071415

For Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates LLP

Sd/-
K P Satheesan (CP No: 2665)

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
‘Annexure A’ and forms an integral part of this report.
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To

‘ANNEXURE A’

The Members,

AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED

38/227-Z, INKEL GREENS EDU CITY KARATHODE-KONAMPARA ROAD, PANAKKAD VILLAGE
PATTARKADAVU ERNAD, KERALA - 676519

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Place

UDIN:

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed is sufficient
to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

: Calicut

F004173G001071415

For Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates LLP

Sd/-

K P Satheesan
CP No: 2665
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KUMAR & BIJU ASSOCIATES LLP

“\ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDIA CALICUT
B L!'I! BICLL LT i;Tllh e
INDEPEMNDENT AL ]
To the Members of

AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

COpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS
LIMITED ¢Formerly Known as ASC Jewel Mamifacturers Private Limited) (herein referred to as
“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year then ended, Statement of cash flow for the year then ended; and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013(*the
act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025,
b} in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Profit for the year ended on that date;
¢) in the case of the Statement of cash flow, of the cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institme-of
Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have falfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements,

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our apinion on lhefnnmw Lall:ﬁn
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Kev Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our andit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming an
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors” report ithereon

The company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board's report including annexures
1o board’s report, Business responsibility report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing =0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 15 a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Res ihiliti d Those Cha with Governanece for the Financi
tatemenis.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of approptiate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudént; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
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operating effectively for ensuring the Accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process,

Auditor's ibiliti the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatemnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of intenal control relevant to audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of
directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the :nh'tg.r".-; ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we arg
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required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor”s report. However,
future events or conditions may canse the entity to cease to continue as a going concem.

* [Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the financial statements
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charped with govemance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

R Legal and ato i

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report), 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure “A' a statement on matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, We report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best uf.m['r

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the financial
statements, -
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b)

d)

e)

2)

h}

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters
stated in paragraph (h} {vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies { Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The Balanee Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of cash flow dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies { Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Companies Act 2013.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectivencss of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial

reporiing,

The Company has paid‘provided for managerial remuncration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V 1o
the Act.

With respect to the Other Matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

i) The Company has no pending litigation which could have an impact on its financial
position in the financial statements.

ii) The Company has no material foresecable losses on long term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31% March 2025, hence not required to
make provision under the applicable law or Accounting Standards,

1i) No amount is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company as on 31* March 20235,

iv) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounis,

(T} No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have -

advanced or loaned or invested (gither from borrowed funds or share premium or any
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other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entity(ies) (“Intermediaries’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(II) No funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entity(ies) (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(111} Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to notice that has caused to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{g), as
provided under (I) and (11} above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the vear in contravention
of the provisions of section 123 of Companies Act, 2013. Reporting on compliance
with section 123 of The Companies Act 2013 is, therefore not applicable this year.

vi) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
15 applicable from 1 April 2023.

Based on our examination which include test checks, and as communicated by the
management, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books
of account, which does not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year.

For KUMAR & BIJU ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.0D61138

Calicut 7/ M.NARAYANA KUMAR FCA
28/08/2025 : Designated Partner
Membership No, 200552

UDIN: 25200552BMFXO0V5701
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- KUMAR & BIJU ASSOCIATES LLP
“‘ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDI A CALICUT

g-panl : kbcalicutf@gmel com

ANNEXURE *A’
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

(As referred to in paragraph | under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our Independemt Auditor’s repont to the members of the AJC JEWEL
MANUFACTURERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as AJC Jewel Manufocturers Private
Limited) for the year ended 31* March 2025)

(i} In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:

(a) (A} According to the information and explanation given 1o us and based on the records
produced before us, we are of the opinion that the company is maintaining proper
records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records
produced before us, we are of the opinion that the company is maintaining proper
records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has a regular programme of physical
verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment are verified by the management at reasonable intervals. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(e} According to the information and :r.pjana!jnns given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial m:mmm: )
held in the name of the company.
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(i)

(d)

(e)

{1i)
{a)

(b)

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its

Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
or both during the year. Hence paragraph 3 (i) (d) of the order is not applicable to

the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no

proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988

{45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

Hence paragraph 3(i) (¢) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In respect of the company's inventories;

According to the information and explanations given to us, Physical verification of
inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given o
us, the coverage and procedure of such werification by the management is
appropriate. The discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate, if any, noticed on
physical verification for each class of inventory has not been computed and hence,
we are unable 1o state whether such a discrepancy existed or not, The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification have been properly dealt with in the books of
accounts;

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records
produced before us, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees during the year, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets; the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are not in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. The discrepancies are
disclosed in Mote No 45 to the financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made investments
in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, 10 companies, firms, L Lm:ted i_uhllilt:r
Partnerships or any other parties during the year.

Hence paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the order are not applicable to the o
company,
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{iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investment made.

(v} According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.
Hence paragraph 3 (v) of the order is not applicable to the company.,

{vi) The Company does not fall under industries, which come under the purview of the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013,

{vii)  In respect of statutory dues:

{a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
emplovees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, and any other statutory dues
to the appropriate authorities.

Mo undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31®
March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause {a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

{viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no transactions not recorded in
the books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

{ix) In respect of borrowings:

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasis af our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment -
of loans and borrowings or in the pavment of interest thereon to any lender.
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(k)

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company 15 not declared as
a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the term loans
were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the funds raised on short term

(e}

hasis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records produced
before us, the company does not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture and
therefore, paragraphs 3(ix) (e) and 3(ix) () of the order are not applicable to the
company.

(x) In respect of issue of securities

(a)

(b}

No money has been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{(including debt instruments) during the year. Hence paragraph 3(x) (a) of the order is
not applicable to the company.,

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records produced
before us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year, Hence paragraph 3(x) (b) of the order is not applicable to the company.

{xi) In respect of fraud:

(a)

(b)

{c)

During the course of our examination of the books of accounts carried in accordance

with the generally accepted auditing standards in India, we have neither come across
any instance of fraud on or by the Company, either noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of such case by the Management.

Paragraphs 3(xi} (b} of the order is not applicable to the company as no fraud has been
noticed during the year.

As per the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower complaints
have been received during the vear by the company. Hence paragraphs 3(xi)(c) of the
order is not applicable to the company,

{xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is-nm"ﬂfﬁ:iéﬂ.ﬁ:-.-_

Company. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company. v
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(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act where applicable and the details if any, have been disclosed in the
financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards:

(xiv}  In respeet of internal audit:

{2) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, The company has an internal audit system commensurste with the size and
nature of its business;

(b} We have considered the intemal audit reports of the company for the period under
audit.

(xv) Based on information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the
year,

(xvi) (a) The company is not required 1o be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi) (a) of
the Orrder is not applicable.

(B) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; Accordingly, the reporting under
paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{e) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under paragraph
3ixvi)c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Dyirections,2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

—
U ASEQ

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial | :-,-eur and in l'h-u
immediately preceding financial year. A LicU '
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{xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

Hence paragraph 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilitics, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, nothing has come to our
attention which causes us 1o believe that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date,

(xx) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, sub section
(5) of section 135 of The Companies Act 2013 is not applicable 1o the company,
sccordingly paragraph 3 (xx) (a) is not applicable to the company.

{b) As sub section (5) of section 135 of The Companies Act 2013 and sub section (6) of
section 135 of The Companies Act 2013 are not applicable 1o the company, paragraph 3
{xx} (b} of the Order is not applicable.

{xxi) Paragraph 3 (xxi) is not applicable to the company as there is no consolidated financial

statements for the company.
For KUMAR & BLIU ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg, No.0061135
\w&
Calicut M. NARAYANA KUMAR FCA
287082025 Designated Partner

Membership No. 200552
UDNN: 25200552BMFX0V5701
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KUMAR & BIJU ASSOCIATES LLP
\ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDI A CALICUT

E-miEd - kBCEcub i grnas coem

Annexure “B" to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report 10 the Members of AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED (Formerly
Known as AJC Jewel Mamufacturers Private Limited) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJC JEWEL
MANUFACTURERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as AN Jewel Manmufocturers Private
Limited) (the “Company™) as on March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential compaonents of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Chver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of sdequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the umel:.f pmpagg.tlun of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act. A0
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance MNote require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the rizks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of
financial statements in accordance with penerally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance régarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Hecause of the inherent limitations of intemmal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting o future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system owver
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for intemal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAL

For KUMAR & BLIU ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

) Firm Reg. Nuﬁ:}‘ @

Calicut M. NARAYANA KUMAR FCA
28082025 Designated Partner
Membership Mo, 200552
L DIN: 25200552BMFX0V5701
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AJC JEWEL MANUFACTURERS LIMITED
{ Fovmerly Knovwn w5 AJC Jewel Manufacturers Private Limired )

JE2TT-Z, Inkel Greens Edu City, Karathode-Konampan Road, Fanakkad Village, Pattarkadav, Mal

CIN Mo : U93090KLI01EPLCOS2621
Statement of Profit and Leas for the Year Ended 31" March, 2025
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{Directar)
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Restimi Nilambur Kovilikam
{Company Secretary}
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31" MARCH, 2025

[

NOTE Nik1
CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CORFORATE [INFORMATION

AIC Jewe] Manufecturers Limited ("the Compaivy™ ) 15 a Public limited company | Formerly Known as S0
Jewel Manufacturers Private Limited ) incorporated on the 23rd of March,201 8. The company is domiciled
in India and has its registered office at 38/227-2, Inkel Greens Edu City, Karsthode-Konampara Road,
Panakkad Village, Pottnrkadave, Malappuram, Emad, Kerala, India, 676519,

The Company has been converted from Private Limited Company o Public Limited Company vide
necesary resolution passed by shareholders and the name of company is changed 1o AJC Jewel
Manufacturers Limited pursuant to issuance of Certificate of Incorporation dated 24th September, 2024,

The company & engaged in the business of Manufscturing snd Designing the wide range of whole sale gold
jewelleries including plain pold, studded gold and named jewelleries,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

aris Vi (i il STcdemenis

The financial statemendis have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAF) In Indis under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting. The financial
statements complies with the Accounting Standards (AS) referved to in section 133 of the Companies Act
20013, other pronouncements of the Institwle of Chartersd Accountants of India (ICAL) and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable,

All assets and linkilitizs have been classified as current and non current as per the company's normal
operating cyvele and other criteria set out in the Schedule T to The Companies Act 2013,

S FIRL{ 1Y Teli |
Thizse financial statements are presented in Indian Rupcuﬂ'}whl.ch i the functional currency of the
Company andd the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operfes.

Rounding of ansowens

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements which alzo include the accompanying notes have been

rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule I to the Companies Act 2013, unless
oificrwise stated.

Llse OF Extimares And Judgments

The preparation of the company’s financial statemenis reguires management io make judgmenis, estimates
and sssumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, cxpenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require o material adjustment to the carrying amount of wsels or liabilities affected in future periods.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of fulure events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; or-in the
period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period. B‘.mmll:ﬁlm
eatimates are reflected in the Tinancial statements in the perind in which changes are made and, it'mﬂnﬂi],-_
their effects are disclosed in the notes 1o the financial statements. 8
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Eroperty, Plant And Equipment And Intangibie Asseis

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated @t cost net of recoverable taxes and include amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. All costs, including financing cost
upto the date of commissioning and attributable to the property, plant and equipment are capitalized, The
useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are determined by the management at the
time the same is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at cach financial vear end.

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumubated amortization.

An intangible asset is recognised ifand only if

{a) It is probable that the future cconomic benefits that are artributable to the asset will flow to the
enterprise; and

(k) The cost of the asset can be measured reliably,

Method OF Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided in the manner prescribed in Schedule [ to the
Companies Act, 2013 using Straight Line Method (SLM),

Borrawing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable 1o the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as
a part of the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to
get rendy for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged 1o the statement of profit and loss.

As there are no qualifying assets, all borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Fareign.C s

(i) Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount, the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

(i} Measurement af the balance sheet date:

Foreign currency monetary items (other than derivative contracts) of the company, oulstanding at the
balance sheet date are restated ot the rates on balance sheet date. Non-monetary items of the company are
carried at historical cost,

{ili) Exchange difference

Any income or expense on aceount of exchange difference either on setilement or on translation is
recogmized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Faluatinr

ltems of inventories are measured at lower of cost of net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, if any,
except in case of by-products, which are valued ot the net realizable value, Cost of inventories comprises of all
costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing
thern to their respective present location and condition,

i) Raw Material, Components, stores and spares: Raw Material, Components, stores and spares are valued at cost.
ii) Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods: Work-in-Progress and Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or
net realizable value. Cost includes direct materinls and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overhead based
on nemmal operating capacity, Net Realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary o make the sale,

Revenue Recognition 7 ASSOC
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the seller has transferred the ownership of poods or il‘lf:!:_
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, seller does not retain any significant controd of |

ownership of the goods transferred and there is no significant uncertainty regarding collebtitn of the | |
consideration, .

P
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Bevenoe from services is gencrally recognized as the service is performed and there fs no significant
uncertainty regarding collection of the income.

Tmiewest Incomes-
Interest Income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
inferest rate applicable,

Taxes On dncome
Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current fgx

Provision for Current tax is messured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, uging the
applicable tax rates after taking inte consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of Income Tax
Act 1961,

Deferred fax

Deferred income tax reflects the current period timing differences between twable income and accounting
income for the period and reversal of fiming differences of  earlier years/(period,
Deferred tx linbilities are measured using the tax rates and tax law that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is a
reasomable certainty that sufficient future income will be available, However where there 15 unabsorbed
depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax asset is recognized only if there is
virtual certainity of realisation of such asset.

Dieferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down o weitten up 1o reflect the
amount that is reasonably/virtually certain to be realized.

Lmployee benefits
fa) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified & short-
term employee benefils. The undiscounted amount of shont-term emploves benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense during the period, Benefits
such as salaries and wages, ete. and the expected cost of the bonus are recognised in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there
is & present legal or consiructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

b Post-Emplevment Benefit

Defined Benefit Mlans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan, The provision for gratuity has been made,
in respect of all employees taking in 1o account the number of completed vears of service. The present vinlue
of the abligation under such defined benefit plan is desermined using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Company's et obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan pssets is
deducted.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields
on Government Securities us at the Balance Sheet date. .

Defined Contribution Schemes : o
The Company's contributions to the Provident Fund and Employee's State Insurance Fund are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the coniributions to the respective funds are due. r =

AL
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LTS 7 e EDICTIRRLS 1 S B
Provisions imvolving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there s present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be outflow of resoures., Contingent
Liabilities are not recognized, bul are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the financial statements,

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation

that may. but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. The Company also discloses present
obligations for which a reliable estimate cannot be made as a contingent liability. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of PESOUITES i5 remdde, no
provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Show cause notices are not considered as contingent liabilities unbess converied into demand.

i Earnnor Par 58

The basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by the weighied
average number of equity shares outstanding during the yeas, For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings
per share, net profit after tax during the year and the weighted average number of shares oulstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year unless they have been issued at a later date. The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issused
at fair value (ic. average market value of the outstanding shares). Anti dilutive cffect of any potential equity
shares is ignored in the calculation of earnings per share.

Crrsh Flow K%

Cash flow are reported using indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transaction of non-cash nature and any defemals or acereals of past or future cash receipts or payments, The
cash flow from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregmted,

Operating Cycle

All assets and linbilities, other than deferved tax assets and liabilities, have been classified as current or nos-
current as per the Company”s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 1o the Act,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and labilitics. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for current and non-current
classification of assets and linbilities.

| Impairment of assets

The carying values of assets/ cash gencrating units ot each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment.

[Fany indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment ig
recognised, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount,

The recovernble amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at
by discounting the future cash flows to their present value hased on an appropriate discount factor,

|
e

An impairment loss is charged to the siatement of profit and loss when the asset isidentified as impairesd.

il .|-: ol
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART (F FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT M™ March 2025

&7 Belated Party Dscloruce AF por 18

& Direnines, Soy Manaperial Personmel (P land shair Sekattees

Name

Ashral Perinkndskkad

[Fathima Jusny Ketekatu

[Kemtnmohame i

[sdohmmedali Cheruparmihil
[Sishesh KV
Resteni Milambur Kenilakam

Sehrteg Pary of Promoiers Ty
Name af ihe
FromotersTireciarsTiey
Managerial Persnanel

Same of the Helative

Relatinmship

Kamhimohamed P

Fathr

Asya

Fathima Jnzna Katekitli

Spouse

Alesl Eshman

Brother

Hasnath

Majiya Thoiba

Sister

Ashraf Perinkndakiad

| Mubammed Haani P
Mshamimed Hagdhi

| Ayisha Ashraf P
belohammied Kutty

Draughter
Spisie’s Frither

Avishebesvi W A&

Spoarse’s Wit

Jafrcha Muhammed E K

Aycha Jaem KK

Spousc’s Xiser

Pathummeu

Apva

Flamrs Pennistikkal

Il ifiriaer

Sakezna P
Sufuda

Ashraf P

| Aleal Rahman

Hasnath

Hasesnn

ujiyn Thaiba

Eunhimobamed P

[eagtier

Ayislia P

Spouse’s Mother

Sirajudhein M

Mohammed Abdismier Makayil

Mohammed Abdal Shareel M

Muhnmed Rafoeg M

Shabeer Melmil

[Nt Melayi

Spouse’s Hrother

Ramla b

Fushra Meleihil

[Salfuemisa Meley

Jubairiyn Melayil

Shaharhana M

Spouse’s Sisler
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Mume of ihe
Promsaiers 1 Mame of the Helsiive Relatinnslisg
Managerial Porsunnel
Mdnhmmmed Euity Fathir
Avishabeevi V' 4 Mdoahier
Aghwal P Spouse
Jahsha Muhgnmed K K St
Avisha Jasmi K, K
Mlekairmed Haani P Son
hfushamemned Haadhi
Farhiima Jasna Kotickaii Ayisha Asheal P i
Eihinotmmed P Spouse’s Father
ASYE Spinse’s Mother
Afml Rahman Spinise’s Brother
Ha=nalh
Haseea Spouse's Sisser
Najiya Thowa
Jarveshenln Spoaise
Faifvimn 223
Fathema Iva Dty
Eiten Hamd San
Mdhamedsli Cheriparmbil M—g :
Sainaba Sisrer
Midesa
Asive
Iheerma Miother
Giopalskrishnam KV [
Fushpa ¥V Miother
Muobesh Kaity Vellaeu | Thulasi Gopal X pir
Hrithwika K'Y Daughies
hlanjuska KV Sister
ot Kishowe S puseg
Aarhay
Reesheni Milambur Kovilakom | Asena Son
i Mokt
Siaer

Name of Fromster Group EntityCompany

Vismayn Furnilure (Parinershap Firm of Mr. Ashraf P, Mr Kaohimohamed P and Mr.Afral Rahman P
Vismaya Gold (Proprietoeshsp af Ashraf Py

A J C Jewellery Trading LL.C

AN Fevwel M luctures (FEE)

Kurunhscanil Marmecesticals (Pannership Finm of Heenza Perinkad et j

Team Flola LLP {Designated partners are M. Mobammed Abdisd Shareel M M1 Ayoobs Kulliyith and br
Mohammed B amshe] Pachark )y

Pechub)

Inco Ageo & Fibers LLP (Designmed pariiiers e Mr. Mohammsed Abdsl Shares! i and Mobammed Hanshad

MEH Enerprises {Prepricioiship of Mr, Sirgjudhoen 1)

) Léosmy Smonce o Relaed Parte ay om 31a March 2075

Same Kelation Swiwre of T ransaction i in Lakhsj
Molanedall Cheruparmba] Whsalle Timee Direstor Salary 1148
bl nscsh Bmrmtiu ' ellao Chief Financial Officer Salary .53
Reshmi Nidambur Kovilakam Company Secreiary Salary 034
Extiny e Which Diirectas & subskiniiall
AJC Jewellery Trading L1C o i ¥ Sakes a8 44
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1 Relosed Powny Tramsaciions during the period

M Felation Mature of Transaction % i Lk
Asbral Pennkadokiod Chairman and Mansgieg Directos Salary 4373
Fathéma Jasea Eollckatia Executive Director Salary fi. (4
Md'l:u'nnd.ﬁ'll;h.ﬂupﬂmﬁ Whale Time Direcior Salary UEE ]
[Mtchaintali Choupaambd Wihade Timw Direcior Purchase 544
Vi & e Emnity im Which Disector i suhstaniially Fymisct Apsdost | of flanivwe a3
. Entity in Wiich Director is subsinsially
Vistmiya Gald i : Regeipt froim debiors TT5.40
i Entsty in Which Director is subeiantisiy
" amminya ok | | Purchise 10341
Entity in Which Diirector is substannéally )
W immiayn Ciold bt Hales 2t 5
. X 8 Erity i Whith Director is substaniially ' i
AJC Jewellery Trading LI In 4 Sali= 137 28
Asya Helative of Drirecior Salary (1}
Kemfimohmed Peninkadaks Relative of Dirocior Salary 1R
| A =l Flshiman P Relative of [heectos Purchase [T
ATl Bahman P i elstive of Direcior Salck 0.9z
[ Mshesh Karatiu Vellaii Chded Fanancial Offcer Purchise 140
Mvizhesh Karsou Vellallu Chaef Fimancinl OfTscor Sales i}
Mahosh Karamy Vellaim Chief Fimancisl Offieer Salary fi.d%
[Reshmi Nilmmbur Kovilakam Company Secreliry Salary 4.20

i Some of the hafances i Trade payables, Short term borrowings, Trade reccivablos, Cither Long verm lesbilities, Cither cosvesd liahilities, Shor tenm laans and
advances, non curien! wsets amd other curent assets are subject o confirmation

29 Mo Residenr Shorehoiders during the year

Particulars As on 3™ March 2025
Mureber of mon-residant shaiichuliders 1
[Dvedends: remitied 1o ihem HIL
A0 g fecome fros Srpord sy
{F fm Lakis)
Mg o Ay oE
TP 31" March 2025 | 31" Mareh 2024
Sale ol Goods 137175 676,72
Tatal 33 84676,72
il Dedaily o fmpord Parchines
¥ b Lakia)
Ay mn Ax om
Particulass
31" March 2025 | 35" March 2834
Purchase of Gioods 057 HIL
Purchase ol Asmeris ML MIL
Tistal 57 WL

A1 Degarls of costwmlion of dem

¥ i Lakivs)
Flgwres as ai the End of Current Figures 5 at the Emd o Previcus
Raw Masirial Hl;pnril:l.l P'I:l‘h:h - l:epnrllli r-larh;u -
ne 14
Geld i omswmahiles Gald Consmmahles
Imgscartead - .57 . .
Indigenous 21,404 b6 [ k] 2381089 e, T
Tatal 21,464.66 6902 DAWE o 9453
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33 Dvsatle of Bevm! Prigperides hald

There arz no procecdngs initisted or pending against the company For bokding any Benami Propéenty under the Benam| Transaciions (Prohidtion) Az 1988
end rules made thereundier.

23 Wil Definwlier
The compresy & ol declared w6 wilfial defaulter by sy Bank of Financisl Instiiufion of other kendiers.

H S niFTRcE W WTTCARE () 1
Thmq:mrhumﬁnlnﬁMnumhﬁﬂllhhapmhadmdudmt!?hnfnmﬁmlufhﬂmrndwiitf_‘unwmmwﬁmmnmmﬂf
lavers) Rules, 2017, and there e o ceenpanies beyond specified lmvers.

< s il Sariack (AN amm Tpas
Thﬂumh}nulllﬂ:lm'h'!ﬂ-l:l.mn:rMwlmmwhwmmmwwﬁwnrcmmlﬁu i
sechon 4% of te Companies A, 2003 paricd uder

L]
The Conepany has nol iraded or invesied in Crypen Curency or Virtual Currency duveg the period.

1T Fivle Oedy of fmmovahie Properiy mor el in Name of the Compar

The company his so immesable progeny {other than propenic: thmmammmmmmunM:mm in favor of the
lesiee) isar tithe deeds ane not bheld i the name of te company,

The company decs not own dhe fand ot whsich ity Buildéngs, Plant & machinery aed Other Assels are sussed.

The lanall 15 leased from INKEL-KSIDC Project Limsied as per the lesse agreement duied 19%8h Chetober 2007 for o period of 32 years commenciag from deh
Movember 2007

The tithe doeds for the land ar hold by INKEL-KSIDC Project Limited. All Buildings and related asscts, including plans md machaery situaied on the leased
Fand, are owned by e company and dischksed unides "Property, Plani, and Equipment (FPE)" in the financial staiements.,

A The Company has noc advaneed or losned or m.:hmuwnd:rmﬁu:s]umﬂ'ﬂi:l].lmludqFnr:ipmlmthiu'rmdlmiu}widlh
umnlirstanding chat the: Enlenmedinry shall
fakdirectly or indirectly lend or Evest in otler persons or entities fdentified in my e whatscever by of on Behalf of the Company (Litimaie Bene ficiaries)
o

(b} provide any guarmmsee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimaie Beseficizries

B The Conspany has not received any fimsd from sy personis) or eniiviies), hddingﬁuﬂnmminﬁmdhurm]mmm:mm
i wriking or ceherwise) that the Compasry shinll:
L&} direstly or indicectly lend or invest in other persens or entitics idemtified in any maner Whissoecver by o om hehalf of the Funding Pamy {Uiimate
Hencfliziames) ar
ARl provule eny guamnies, secwity oo the Hle om behalf of the Ultisaste Bencficiamies.

AT AT

3 Rew

'|11= has ot revalued its Property, Plant mnd Equipenent during ihe vers and Companies (Registered Valuers s Vahiation) Rules, 2017 is not
applicabls during the vear.

{® fm Laihsj
: Mature of
Chargehnlider Mame Ch Aussets Secured by ibe Charge Amomnt of Charge Stadus
I. All the existing siock n irede cormistsng of raw
malcrisls, finishied goods, goods in process of]
manufschaing. and any osher posds — s per the
mttnched Dewd of Hypeshecstion
< All the book debits amount ouistanding monses
HOFC BAME LIMITED Dreed of hypothecation  [feceivable claims and bills whick 2,500,060 Cipen
are maw due md owing or which may al sy fime
hereafier during  ~as per attached Desd  off
Hypothesation
3. All the plant and machinery ame & per the
jttached Cieed of Hypothecation
Wehscle Loan for Mahindra Bolers MEC M4
1CICT BANE LIMITED Car Loan Agrecment  [(Chessis Ma - MATNATXZXREFE1435. Ensgrine S0 o Open
- XZRGFTHI3E) A
cALICUT IE'I
-'.-'.'-:.-I"
A
i - o S
= i




Hypotbwcation of the vehick Mercedez Benz GLC
20IF AMATIC MODEL used car wigh Viehsele Mo

ICICI BANK LIMITED | Hypothecation Agroement KL 10 BG 5555 and (CHASIS NO - S0 Cipen
WIS 391 561046233, EMNGIMNE My
G549I0RI1 ISR )

Mlorigage of lease ol rights of immosahle praperty,
with all buildings and other strucoures (exssting and
to be constructed) situmed o Swrvey Mo, 18872 (13
cemd), 1834 (35 cent) mensudng S0 cemt (4047
AXIS BAME LIMITED | Memewandum of Deposil {aresilocaied st INKEL KSIDC Industrial Park in S0 00 Cipeen
Fanakknd village, Ketzhmwan Desom in Eijit:J
bounded on Esst by Primary Road 20 meter vi
West by Plot Mo.37, Smuh by 36 4 and Morth by Ploi

Mo R and 36 o
. ; Hypothecatson of all current assets of the company Satisfied on
FCHCT BANE LIMITED Hypothecation Dieal jh" s ek Sk b ai 100 60 P
Hypothegation of the Compen's enlire siodks of rm
maierials, semi-Finiahed and fl
poodls comsumahle siones and spares and such Satisfind on
ICICT BANE LIMITED Hypothecation [eed  (moveshles  including  book-delus bills  w 250000 L2075
Aoty ar elem, outstmding )

oembcs roceivobles, Botls present and fisure, o a
form and mannes salisfactory 1o the Bank.

41 Linslircioes imopust

There & no incame sarendered o disclosed a8 ineome umhmm“pﬂhmrwlnhmmumm:hmutumL 1961, that hies fl
Igen recorded in the bogds of s¢oount

43 Capunn! Commwitmpmy.
The company docs not have any capital commigmenis as on 31 March W24

- Collwtersl Hepayment Terins
Farility Primary Security
ry Security (i manths] ﬂl.l:l_l‘tll'l-

Ml

BCECT Amn boss {Benr) Hypothecation of Vehicle: Mercedes B (GLC T304 Mil &0
Mil
ICICT Ao loan {Balera) Hypothecation of Vehicle; Mahindra Balen Mea il il :
ICIC] Business Loan il Tl kL il
Kisctiu Saimom Fingngs Nd il 4 il
SMEL India loan Nil Nl 25 il
TATA Capasl Loan Ml Ml 4K Nl

Azhral P, Fahima
K.cfak Mahindra Bk Lrmted Ml il I Kunhimobarmed
]F
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f'l'ﬂ Lﬂ.ltl.l
Amomni as per Amaunt reparicd
Perisd erails Frovided K harcas with Bank HiTeremie
Trventory Tath.o% 205 8 119.43
Quarter 1 _;Em L6188 ¥TNT: 715 07
e 3104 7 100 13 745 65
Quaster 2 Tickaors R 215940 67957
~Trventany 58801 3008 43 41871
Quarter § Tebeods T WL T40.47
[ Pl 101319 ;
\——r 4 R L7794 104,95 1169 B5)

Warianoe in sicck figures msy anse from ronliee opemaione Fﬁ-m-rr:m:humh-umit_pmudm stck Feconcilition, md fimdng of
plnysical venfication Varistions in debsor hafances may abso resull from pending reconcdliation made during ihe financial closing prosess.

46 Surwiops Per Sharey

Met Profil alter tax for the vear his been used as ihe mumerator and numkscr of shares has B od a5 denonsingor for calculaiing the basic and diluisd
cammgs per share

Particulans As at SINAZ0IS A at JLIA2024

— e
Faxe Value Per Shase { In Bs, ) 10,00 10,00
Nel ProfitiLoss) after tax (¥ i Lakhs) 286,14 LT
Weaghted number of Fgaity Share

e ol gty 4436000 $0,30,584.00
Brasne s Driluiesd Farnings per shure ol e
o Py 7.74

R

Thae scheme: provides a lump sum payment o elighle employecs at retiremeni, death, incapacitntion, of ermination of emplovment, hased on the 1 drawn
salary and completed years of service, subject 1o a vesfing period of 5 vears

As per the actusrial vabsation condecied in sccordance with A5 15 (Revised) as & 3151 March 2025 ihe fallowing disclosures ane made:

['.(J Heconciiation of Diefined Sensfir Obdigcarion and Plen dzse

Farticulars (¥ i Lakhs)
Present value ol ghe obligation sl the end of the pericd 15.00
Fair value of assets o i af peri 19.92
et Linhiliey/ | Asset) Recognised in Bulmoe Sheet (497
&) Exparwse Regonpeized i Profd and Loss dccounr
Particulars A% i Lakha)
Imacrist Cost 1.8
oot oaevim o 308
Expecied reum on pla assai -
Wl actuarial (gainploss {10.28)
recogized in the period
[Expenses o be recognized i Pl 4a2))
cil Revonsiliation af Chpervingg and Clostmg Balamees of DY and Plar drrets
Defimed Feneflr (Wiigation:-
Pariiculars {T in Lakbs
Present valug of e ohligaiion al 19.04
the hepinnieg of te paniod
Inierest Cast 1.38
[Currem service cost EXT)
Elenefits paid -
Actumial |pamploss (0.4
Present vabue of ihe obligation s 15,00
the enil of the period
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Flan dsrebr

Particulars

AT in Lakhs)

Falf vaue of plan assets of the beginning of the
period

Expecied return on plon sssets

Emplivver Contribution

15 04

Henedils pod

Actumrinl gamloss) on plan asses

.88

Fair Value of Flan Asset i ibe end of the Period

19,92

i A rony Lired
_ Particulars
Dersiount Bade

i’itlh

(Salary Growih Rare

Sapa

Mortality

BALM 2013-14

Expecied rate of relurn

Aptrition / ‘W ithdrawal Raoie

1% p.a

Mormal Retirement Ape

55

48 Corparate Sachal B it
For the fnancial year 100324, the Compaen's et profit was below 25 crores, hesce, USR provisioss ame not applicohle for the Faaneinl Year J024-25
4% Detaly o Swury Filled by the Commppey
e Ceenpiisery fifed suil agninst the following cumomens fior the rocovery of duss and pending a3 on 31™ March 2025 are s follows,
Particulars MNatwre of [vispute {¥ in Lakhs) Remarks
Ay Civil, Repavery 2141 Suii filed For recovery of duss
iof wrade receivables ! Peniling before approprisic kegsl fomum
Siar O il | tion P Lid Ll Reconery Smil filed for recovery of dues
ol erade roceivables 1 Pending Befiore spguopriole lepal forum
39 vty eof payments i Audirors
(i Laklix)
Farticulary Figures s af the Esd of Carrent
Heporting Ferisd
Seabutory Audit Fee 500
Tex Audn Fee I 0

3 Whuslebiower Complaint

T comipisny Bas nol received any whistleblower complaints during the period. Mo Frauds bad boen noticed by o reponied 1o the Company
22 Mo emphsyee is in receipt of resmmeration exceeding in aggregaie of Ke, 102, 00,0004 if employed shroaghout e veir or Rs. 8, 50, (K- per il if

cmployed for o part of the vear

A¥ There are no indications of impairmen on any individual cesh genern

of imqairmeni s corriod oul.

ling assets or on cash generiling umits i the opinion of menagement and terefore no iesi

&4 Mo scheme of Armngeiments has been approved by compesent sitharity in lems of sections 730 1o 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 m nespect of the Company.

43 The Directors have waived off their right to chaim the sitting fees for the Board Mesting svended by them except in the case of independent direcine

3ty The company hes reclassified snd regrouped previous yemrs figares tn confons 40 this years classifications
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fTm Lakivs)

L t
Figures as af the _ lu!.'l-ﬂll ihe
Parileulars end of current W
reporting period reparting period
NIOTE N 2
SHARE CAPITAL
Auilhirioed Share capiinl;- 1 B0LHE LR
I D o, D00 sqquity shares off * 1D4- ench)
1,500,140 (R
Essusad, subscribed and Fully paid up share capital:-
44,48,360 equity shares of * 104 each) 444 84 44484
| Vostal lssiwed], Subscribed snd Fully paid wp share capital A4 B4 ! 444.84)

1H:den-1:|n of the number of shares sutstanding st the beginning and st the end of the reporting period

As mt 31032023 A o 31032024

Shares cutstinding i the end of the vear

Purticulars Nunber Mumber
of shares T of shares _tI
Sharcs s the beginning of the period 4,48 360,00 3| 2RA3220.00 284,32
Adkd: Shares issoed during the yesr

_ Z 16,05, 140,00 14,51
4448, 560000 4.4 1%1 44484

Ench holder of equity shares is emiitled in ane vode per share

M Comparry has only one class of shares refered 8o as cqjuity shares having a par volse of § 1

The company his nist isswed ary shares For considerstion othes than cash,

carie of falertm alividhemal

LT, W propartion i thele shareholding,

T Company bas issivd one claes of squity shares having a firee valve of Br. 10 per share, Edch shureholder i eligible far ane vole per shary held
Thee dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject o the approvel of the shareholders in the enuirng Al Gienesa) Meeting, Ercepy tn

D i event af liguidavian, the equwily shareholders are eliible fo recefve the remcining erseos of the Compony afier disreibugion of all prefaréntlal

Aspt 31,03, 3025 As a1 31032024
MaiEs ol the sharcholder Mumber Wamber
of shares % held af shares. | ;
Kunhimohamed Perinkadakiad 12,37,504).00 ITRI [ 133750000 | nl
Abdul Raxik 4,29 004, (0 9464 4,75,5%0.00 1
Ashraf Perinkadakkad 16,58,630,00 A0 | 15,90,340.00 35.75|
Asyn 3,08, 77004 £ 5 3,06,770.00 690
Sharafali 4,29 (0000 .64 A, 50,700 113
|Detaits of sharehaldiag of promobers
Shares bl by promssiers ot th énd of the year % of change during the vear
Promcier's Bame Mioaf shares % of todal shaes
Ashral Perinkadakkad |6, 5%,630.00 37.29 4.29
I:&Hrﬂtimhmﬂd Perinkadakkad 12,37, 50000 R -
Faitharnn Jasna K osickkasiu Z,15.400.00 454 .
Total 31,11.530.80 69.95
Terms & Biphts aitgohed e Equity Sharey
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING

FCACT Lovaen - SH3H700700 1060 1
i dewarre i teakere oo 1 B2 2023 avad rapayable in 84 instaliments

[Bank of India 0167
{Thvis focan ix fooken om O6-08-2072 and repepyable in 60 installments.
Tive raate of fnterest i 8 50% p.g, and secured by Vohicle)

Bnk of India Loan Aoccount 0] 65
{This Jocw ix saben an J6-04-2027 and repayarble in 84 ntaliments.
The rate of Imtevest 3 7.05% p.a., and secured by Vehicle)

ICIC] Awin Losn {Eeca)
(T heir oo i tekerw e P00 2023 el repapaible br 37 nsialiven,
The rate of nterest & 14.3% p.a. ard secured By Fehicle)

red Loans
JCICT Loan-UPTHRI00498465604
Kisetsu Saimcn Loan - TN 848D
SEMFG Indin Loan - (5400241 1942996
TATA Capital Loan - TCFBLOGSBG001 3429722

{Footak Mahindra Bank Lid Loan - 155491329

Flgures & al (ke
end of current

reparting period

TH2.69

1,029.03

.00

3933

il

il

Nl

2144
21.33
1383
3Ln

1.1

69
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fim Lakiis)
T

b
Figures as at ihe Figures as at the
Particalars end of current end of previous
reparting period reporting period

Secured Loans
JICHCT Avrin Lo LAKOXDG050538050

This Loaw i iaken air 1 5.0 12024 and repayable in S0 inrtallments, The rate of baierest is 9 70% . cvicd the Toown secured by Felicle

1CECT Ao Loan =11 PMOO0S 0450345
Theix loan s takery on 03-10-2024 and repavabile in &8 mnstalleerds, The rote of interesi i 1155 pow and e bourm v secwred by Feliele,

Unsecured Lonns
TCICT Lomn=LIFTH R0 469096

Thix fages i akens om § 7-05. 2024 and repayarble in 36 inntallments, The rate of Inferest iv | 3 IH pa

Kisetsu Saizon Laan = 1200 84%0
Theix boaw ix pakert on 31-12-2024 ond repapalle in 24 iastatiments, The ree of eserest is 16% pa

SMEPG Irdin Loan = 0540034 1 194 7996
Fivis foan ix taken on 00-1 2-2004 aved repoyobie b 25 instalimenis. The role af frteress is I™pa

TATA Caplial Loan - TOFBLOOSRGNH001 3420722
s foans is tnkent om 172122024 and repayobie in 48 inssrilments. The rate of Inerest iy 16% .

[Koak Mahindra Bank Lid Loan - 1 55490320
Thix Inaw s takew an 31-12-2024 and repavable in 24 ianaiiments, The rate of falerest is 1% poo and g Love i Chuaraveeed by Diveecions

MOTE N0 5
Lehierred Tax Linkbdlitiss on -
Depreciation 11.93 122
11.93 |1 e
11.93 122
—
NOTE ¥ &
Employees Security Doposat 823 822
8.1 8.2
]
NOTE NG T
[P rovision for Grabaity Ml 1a.03
NIL !i.ﬂ!
|NOTE MR
SHOET TERM BEORROWINGS
Secured
Overdrmfi
Axis Banks SRE0G00 | 3360843 93 0]
HIFC Feamlk- 3020010561 8242 2515m
I Bank -268 151000003 Mil
el Metal Loon
A Pandk 1imvited 21557
ICHC] Bk Lemited HOB.E3




A 1™ NG PART OF T AS
{im Lokl
K 1
Figures as at the | Figures asat the
Particulars end of current end of previoms
— e .
Fram Cithers
Mooewalla Fincorp Liméed-018 Hil 0,62
i usrenl maturities of lng tenm borrowings fox per Now 54) i 4| il
ENETNE] EE

NOTE N0 BA

ICHCT Ami Loss- LAKOXI00505 38050 .52 “Hil

DEHCT Asio Laosn LU FMOME04503 48 E20 Hil
Lnsexmred
Jicct LourtpTHROvO4sB4c056 14,43 il
Kisetsn Suison Loan - 12018480 IR.36 Mil
SMFG Indin Loan - 0500024 | 194355046 14.23 Mil
TATA Capilal Loan - TCFRLIGSS00001 3429722 809 il
1Hnﬂh Sahindra Bank Led Loan - 155491329 259 Hiil
TR.A4l m
T o ————
|Omerdial
Spoured

Aot Bank= G20300 | $360843

Secured by beasehold indistrial property, leased by fnkel KSIC projects Lid s AN fewsd Marufpcturers Lid, Cwerent Axrets and perrosn guaranies of
fatreciars, Rate of Interest is Beépo Rate 7008 pur,

HOFC Rank-502000105618242

 Secwrved by Dedvors, Siock, Commierciol Land, Plain Lane, Residential Praperty of Persoml Grsraniees's and Personal Guaronie, Rate of faferest is
Repo Rate+2 5% pa

okl Metal Losn
Axcis Bank Limisad

Secured by leasehold industricl property leased by inkel KSIDC projects Lid to AJC Jewel Mumufacturers Lid, Cuerent Assets and personal puaraniee of
arirectors. Rave of farerest is finked fo ivernimtions! gold inferest rate

[CHCT Bank Limised
Secwred by fmmovrbly properly af directors, Current Assets ol persanal puarmsiee of the direciors. Rate of Interest is as per (reasury rotes
(f-urrent Matwriries of bang ferm borrowings

Secured Loan
FCICT Aune Laan- LAKOXMR05 38050

(Thix ko ix taker am 1 5-11-2024 and repayable in 60 irtaliments. The rate of faerest is 270 poa, md secured by Veliglp)

ICRCT A Lo -LUMPMONESO4 50344
Tds fosari b forken e 03 1102024 avedd repayable in 6 resteelimertc The rase af Ietevesd is 11,5% poo, and seciured by Velvicle)

U nseemred ; .:. BSS y
PCICT Losan=LIFTHROO 0846004 ; o
Tiriz fesan éx rakvsi o f?rﬂjuma-lmfd'ﬂm;ﬂ.[lff i 36 (eciolimnerin }ﬁrwafm i1 mp.d'.

[ isctisu Saison Loan - 1201 8480
This fvon i tmken or 31-13-2024 and repayable in 24 bistallments. The rate of Iierex is 16% P

SMIFO Encdi Lo - (540024 115942554
This ki Iy bakere an 0-1.2-2024 and repayatble in 23 nstaliments. The rare of iierest is 1™ pa
71




{Tan Lakiex)

L ; T
Figures as at the Figures as at the
Particutars end af current end of previeus
reporting period reporting period
=

TATA Capital Loan - TCFBLOOGSD000] 3429722

Kotak Mahirdra Bank Lid Loan - 135401329

Fivie focan is fokess oo [ 70 2- 2004 and repervabie fa 88 insnlleemis The note af Interast iz J6% p.a

Thuis foe ix takew am 31-12-2024 and repayable in 24 instailments, The rare o fteresr i 1% pr and the Loon i Graranleed by Deecions,

|SETE M0 %

THADE PAYVABLES

[14) Total vutstnnding dues sf micro enterprises and small
enberpriices

[{B) Total sutstanding dues of ereditors uiher than micro
enterprises amd smnll enterprises

013

k13

2.3%

135

| rsckosures required wader section 22 of tie Micre, Small and Medim

Enterprives Develapment Acr, 2006;

Partbculars

(i} Princapal amoant remaiming unpasd to any supplhior &5 ol the end of the
nocouniing year

i) Imserest due theseon remalning unpaid 1o any supplier as at the end o]
thie nocoanting yiar

'I'iiil The amount of interest paid along wish the amounts of the TV TTREiE
mack: 0 thee supplier heyond the appointed day

JUrw} The amount of interest due and payable for the vear

iv) The amount of interest scerued and remaining unpaid ot the end of the
acoausting yeur

(vi) The amount of fiarther imlerest due and pavable even in the
succending wear, until such duie when the inierest dues &5 above ane
sctually paid

s i As ot
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
] T

003 932

Newe: Dues fo Micra sad Swiall Enterprises bive been desermingd fo the exiear sush Purrie fearve brew iolemdified oa the haxisof infarmralion callecied

¥ "'.," i =

NOTE NO i@ NG

VIHER CU I ] )"H

Auiil Fee Paysblo 6.00 [R5 Al
EPF Payable 0005 | N : 16
ES1 Pavable 013 g ML !ﬂ,..Ei"r 24
GST Payable 00059 Nil
TCS Payable 0.63 224
1T} Payshle SR 234
Imerest On TCS Payable {0, 00015 Ml

(4



h'l'DTEHIJH

Onatstanding For n peried for more than 1 year mpta 2
ummmwm o
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Excess OF Gratuity Assel Orver Linbility

D oo ICTCH {Exprort) 268113001392
FI an 1CICH (Export) 268 113001403
T an ICICH (Export) 2681 13001523

FD on ICICH {Expost) 2681 1300] 592
FIon BCICT {Expoet) 2R 130023594

tstamiding for u period for more than 3 years
Trade Receivibles considered good
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17.06
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.53
105
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.63
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ET AS AT 35T MARC, 2025

(I Lakly)
L ¥

Figures us a the ‘Figures as at the

Particulars endl of current end of previows

Feperting period reparting perind
Greytip Software Private Limised il 013
K. P, Sarheesan il g1
oviindis Techmologies LLP il g
Chrlaiz Automotives il 30

JE.16 MI!
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ZE

Dipenimg Work 5 Progress

Less;

Clesing Value of Finished Goods 130,76
Closing Velue Wark in Progress 200 44
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Interest on TCS
Interest om TDS

Lond |aase Femt

Membership Renewal Fee

GST Expenses

ST Labe Fee

mcome Tax Pakd FY 202-22
eoamis Tax Pasd FY 2022-23
Paper and Poriodicals
Trademark Expenses
mnsporiation Expenses

78



{far Leakirs)
T

Figiires ns at the Figures a5 at the
Farticulars enil of current end af previous
repariing period reporting period
NONTE MO 26
TAX EXPENSES
Current Tax 103,16 (RENLY
Deferred T 1.71 £
sharlExvess of Income Tax of Previous Years 23 Ml
10511 11778
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enberprises
Weenus Enterprises

Total

and small enterprises
MEG Pluss

Total

OTHER CURKRENT LIABILITIES
{Refer Note no. 1)
Adva I rivm [he

Abharina Mahal Gold And Diamonds Haripad
Grdl Gold & Diamonds LLP (Me)

IMathur Jewellers

Josco Bullion Traders Pyt Lid

Kaniyadath Gold And Diamonds Kunnumpuram
Kombasseril Jewellers

New Thoufeeque Jewellery Works Kizhisseri
Temple Fashion Jewellery

Thayyil Gold And Diamonds

Vijayakrishana Jewellers Kotiarakkara
Vijoyakrishna Jewellers Punalur

ZLara Gold And Diamonds Edappal

Total

TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Refer Note o, [5)
Outstanding for # period less than 6 months

a} Undisputed Trade Recejvables considered good

Andhar Gold Chemmad LLP

Abharana Mahal Gold & Diamonds Kayambkulam
A1 C Jewellery Trading LL.C

ALKC. Jewellery

Al Arnana Cold & Dismonds

Al Mapal Jewellery

Al Masg Jewllery

Alora Gold LLP

Alukkas Jewellery Kannur

Alukkas Jewellery Kozhikode

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

(B)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

: ING OF AC FORMIMG T OF FINAMNC TEME 5T MA
{In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS AMOUNT (Im ¥)
TRADE PAYABLES
{Rifer Move no 8

LR B

13
p=t

235

1.25

4.78
0.(d065
00017

0.30

0.25

1.47

0.001
1.003

0.15

0.06

014

(), 5

5

(20
6.62
9E.44
6304
0.34
50.13
18.00
b6 B9

e RN 1.E9

135
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ROLPING ACCOLN MING P FIMNAMN

TS

IST MARC
{In Lakhs)

FARTICULARS

AMOUNT (In ¥)

——rermr = a——
Arabian Fashion Jewellery Alamcode

Aribian Fashion Jewellery Pothencode

Arabian Gold And Diamonds Kavamkulam

Asian Gold And Diamonds Edappal

Avanoor Fashion Jwellers

Arret Gold

Beautymark Gold Manufactures PVT LTD

BGC Gold

BGC Gold LLP

Bhagya Gold & Diamonds

Chalivar Gold LLP Amaro

Chenalloor Jewellers

Chinnus Fashion Jewellers

Chungath Gold Plaza Kollam

Chungath Jewellery Thiruvanandapuram

Dheema Gold Mangalam LLP

Dubai Gold Souk Kondotty

Edimannickal Fashion Jewellary

Fanco Gold LLP

Fathima Jewellery Works

Fellah Gold And Diamonds LLP

Firdous Gold Pattambi LLP

Firdous Gold Ramanattukara LLP

Firdous Gold Valanchery LLP

Gilaw Gold

Cold Palace kadakkal

Giull Gold Soulk

Harees Fashion Jewellery

Hayath Gold And Diamonds LLP

Irish Gold

Jevwelex Gold

Jewelima Diamonds Private Limited

Jos Alukkas India Private Limited Coimbators

Jos Alukkas India Private Limited Thrissur

Kanaka Gold And Diamonds

Kaniyadath Gold Palace LLP Kadappady

K G P Gold Works Koduvally

Kismath Gold And Diamonds

Kismath Gold And Diamonds Arakkinar

Kottakkal Hayra Gold LLP

K. Velayudhan Gold LLP

Laiga Gold & Diamonds Thamarassery

Malabar Gold And Piamonds Limited

Mananthavady Gold & Diamonds LILP

Manha Gold And Diamonds LLP

Muareena Gold & Diamonds LLP

Marjan Gold

Meralda Jewels Private Limited

Msmm Holdings Private Limited

Mubarck Jewellery Ramanattukara

Mumihaz Jewellery

(.89
168
8.02
L6
I.50
2.7
.54
3.06
.34
439.40
30.20
0.69
1.13
1.83
208
B.96
35.08
[.42
11.62
0035
U316
0.54
0.60
1.8
5.84
0.78
040
.72
228
0.68
4.96
1346
| .80
0.75
l.61
.86
1589
16.16
JLEQ
0.41
£23
.14
115
1.14
0.52
0.45
0.35
0.97
.12
1.01
134.02
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Zayan Gold And Diamonds Pyt Lid

GRO ACOOY I FIMAN TEMENT! 15T MARC

(In Lakhs)

FARTICULARS AMOUNT (In ¥)

e o T— —

Makshatra Gold And Diamonds Aluva 0.88
Makshatra Gold & Diamonds Mg Road 1.73
Niva Gold Cherpulassery .24
NS Gold 2.69
Pereppadans Gold Park Karunagappally 17.82
Pereppadans Gold Park Kottarakkara 23.85
Pereppadans Gold Park Nedumangad 5.13
Pereppadans Gold Park Nevvartinkara 36.03
Pochayil Jewellers (.004
Pochayil Jewellers (Unfix) 25.42
Ponnara Fashion Jewellers Alinchuvadu 81
Pothys Swama Mahal Private Limited Chennai 3.55
P.P.M.Gold 51.53
Prakash Jewellery 0,49
Ratha Gold 38
Rajadhanigold And Diamonds Pyt Lid Karunagappally (.69
Razi Gold & Diamonds Chemmad 2.96
Regal Jewellers LLP 2795
Safa Gold And Diamonds Limited B.hd
Sahara Gold And Diamonds Mathottam 110
shatimar Jewellery Malappuram 0.34
Shazana Gold And Diamond 018
Shinora Gold Dizmands (.07
Shobhika Gold & Diamonds (Sgd) 243
Sivana Gold And Diamonds LLP 13.82
Siyana Gold Othukkungal 1.02
Sona Gold And Diamond 0.17
swarnarnihal Jewllery 0.52
Thankam Jewellery Feroke 1.15
Tharakans Royal Jewellery 213
Theertham Jewellers 00047
The Josco Fashion Jewellers Thrissur .02
Thrichur Fashion Jewellers 1.21
Travancore Jewels Private Limited 1.65
Varnam Gold & Diamond 180
Vengara Gold LLP 000028
Vijayakrishna Gold Pathanapuram .69
Vismaya Jewellers Chemmad 0.002
Vismaya Jewellers Kundoor .24
Vismaya Jewellers Othukkungal 2.36
Wiyaan Jewellery 0.57
W M Gold And Diamonds LLP 26781
Vyra Gold And DHamonds 0047
Zahr Gold 4.17
Lara Gold Koduvally 13.10

1.15

1,675,346
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{Ifr Lakfs)

FARTICULARS

AMOUNT (In ¥)

Outstanding for » period for more than 6 months upto 1 yea

a) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered good

Dubai Gold Souk Kondotty

Firdous Gold Pattambi LLP

Mohammed Shaiban

Pothys Swama Mahal Private Limited Tvm

Outstanding for a period for more than 1 year upto 2 years
i) Undisputed Tragde Receivables considered good

Alain Gold& Diamonds
Bara Gold And Diamonds
Essess Gold And Diamonds Koduvally

Ll‘lulshndin.g for a period for more than 2 vears apto 3 vears
) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered good

Muhammed Niyas
Santhosh K

b} Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

Ayooh
Star Commercial [nnovations Prvate Limited

(Outstanding for a period for more than 3 years
) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered good

Suneesh

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

{Refer Note ne, [ 7)

Advance to Creditors

Gold & Silver Manufacturing Jewels

—_—
r

15.52
17
024
1.73

17.65

(.35
.15
349

5.0

[.00
2341

24.41

23.41
7.04

45
B

20,90

29,99

0.22

.22
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{In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS AMOUNT (In %)
= = = = ——
Bevenue From Dperations
(Refer Newe mo [ 9)
a) Revenue from Goods
Sales Cist (Imterstage) 56, TH
Sales Gst {Intrasiate) 18,080,013
Export Sales (LUT) 311304
Export Invoice Fixation 257.84
Stone Charge 0.82
Stone Charge (Interstate) (0NN ]
Iﬁﬂlﬁﬁl
b) Revenue from services
Design Charpes(Sales) 0.56
Job Work Charges (Intrastate) 17.28
Hallmarking Charges 1.93
Hallmarking Charges{Inerstate) 0,019
Repair Charges .06
19,84
Finnnee Cosis
{Refer Note No, 24)
Interest Cosi
ja) Interest on Gold Metal Loan
Axis GML Interes| 855
ICICT GML Interest 65,54
b} Interest on Overdrafi
Interest on ICICI OD 20,75
Interest on Axis Bank Cash Credit 341
Interest on Hdfe Cash Credit 607
c} Inferest on Loan
Interesi on Bank OFf India 2.
Interest on ICICI Eeco Loan 0.20
Interest on ICIC] Loan <0346 214
Interest on ICICI Loan-0d 1 547
Interest on ICICI Loan-8050 0.27
Interest on ICHCT Loan=S406 514
Interest on Kiseisu Saison Finance Loan 1.62
Imerest on Kotak Mahindra Loan .31
Interest on Poonawala Loan 002z
Interest on Smifg India Credit Company Limited Loan 1,03
Interest on Tata Capital Limited Loan |.26

186,29
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— —— = =

Sl Mo

Particulars

Debt Equity Ratio

1.39

i Heasan For Change

The slight decrease in the Current Ratio dising the cumens
year is primawily due 0 an increase im  shori-term
borrowings, following the wvailing of new overdraft
facilities from HDFC Bank and Axis Bank, This led 1o af
margenal rise in current Habilities Howewer, the overall
liguidity position of the company remains stable and within)

2.35

J

iﬂumﬁuﬂlcm
. |The incresse i the Debe-Equity Ratio during the current

214 shori=term [oans, wnsecured loans, and overdrafl Facilities

year is primarily due to o rise in total borrowings, inclading

availed Ffram banks to support working capital requiremens,
As the company’s debl increased without & proportionare|
increase in equity. the Debt-Equity Ratin rose sccordingly,

Debit Service Coverage Ratio

1.79

Eﬂ becsuse of new loan facilities from the hanks, which added

[ka 1o & decline in the company™s profit during the current
period. Additionally, the compeny’s finance costs increassd

i it debd whlignidons. These factors combined heve reduced
the comparmy's ability 1o cover its debd paymenis, resulling|
ina decnease in the mtio,

Return on Equity

LR

Inventory Turnover mtio

Dhue io lower prafit in the current period.

1127 |

Trade Receivables Tumnover Ratio

14,27

1473

The decline in the invensory turmsover ratio is due i reduced
mies, As sbes hove slowed down mventory is meving
mare showly, which has led o & lower invesdory furmover
ratio,

-{!I;ﬂ. incresse  bn trade  recelvables.
~ |receivables and lower revenue together contribuied o the

The decrease in the Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio is
due to a decline in sales, inchading exports, along with an
Higher owsstandin

Jreduction in the ratio,

Trade Payvables Turnover Ratio

BST.73

25191 [significant roduction in average irade pavables, os the

: 'Il decline in overall twmover comfributed 1o the change,

The increase in the Trade Payshles Tumover Ratio during
the current vear is primarily due (o lower parchasss and a

|company made timely payments 1o suppliers. Additionally,

Met Capital Turnover ratio

17.00 |

JDue 102 decrease in sales far the period

Met profit ratio

1{F

01

Mo significant change

Return on Capital emploved

36

| e 1 & decrense in profitability for the period
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